
CITY OF DAPHNE 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

JUNE, 2014 

6:30 P.M. 

  

                                                                              

 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL / INVOCATION /  Dr. Michael Huntley / Holy Trinity Lutheran Church 

  
 3.  APPROVE MINUTES:      Council meeting minutes / May 19, 2014 

                                                    Amended Council Work Session minutes / May 12, 2014 / NO ACTION REQUIRED 

 

PUBLIC HEARING:  CDBG / Dauphine Acres/Whispering Pines Area 

           

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
A. FINANCE COMMITTEE - Conaway        

B. BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE -  Davis 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell    

   Review minutes / May 14
th

  

     

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Scott 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – LeJeune 

    

 

 5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  
   A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones  

         Review staff report for the May 1
st
 meeting 

        

   B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway  

         Review minutes / May 28
th 

  

   C.  Industrial Development Board – Davis    

   D.  Library Board - Lake  
D. Planning Commission – Scott  

Review minutes / April 24
th

  

 

   F.  Recreation Board - LeJeune 
   G. Utility Board - Fry  

        a.)  Review minutes / April 30
th

  

        b.)  Resignation of Board member Lon Johnston 

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayors Report             

     B.  City Attorney’s Report 

           MOTION:  To authorize the Mayor to sign a Land Lease Agreement between the City of Daphne and  

                                Verizon Wireless Personal Communications LP D/B/A Verizon Wireless / (Tiawasee  

                                 Creek Site/PC Law No. 1127-1308) 

 

     C.  Department Head Comments 

     D.  City Clerk Report 

                                         

 



 

 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                     JUNE 2, 2014                                   PAGE   2 

 

 

 

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:   
 

 

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

   

        RESOLUTIONS: 

 

NO RESOLUTIONS TO CONSIDER 

 

 

 ORDINANCES:         

 

       2
ND

 READ     

a.)    Establishing a Policy for Events Held Within the City of Daphne. . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-23 

 

 

         1
ST

 READ 
b.)     Appropriation of Funds:  Project:  ACOA61155-ATRIP 02-05-35 /  

         Resurfacing Windsor & Ridgewood Drive – 1.25 Miles 

         (Lake Forest Phase IV). . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-25 

 

 

 9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS        

10.  ADJOURN 



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY    PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT FRY    PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES      PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS       PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 



MAY 19, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
 

 

1.    CALL TO ORDER:  

There being a quorum present Council President Fry called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Pastor Stuart Davidson with the Eastern Shore Baptist Church gave the invocation 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    

Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

Also present:  Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Sarah Toulson, Assistant City Clerk; Kevin Boucher, 

City Attorney; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Adrienne Jones, Community 

Development Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Tonja Young, Library Director; 

Mike Hinson, Finance Director; David Carpenter, Police Chief; James White, Fire Chief; 

Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Richard Merchant, Building Official; Michael Hoyt, 

Municipal Judge; Ashley Campbell, Environmental Programs Manager; Angie Phillips, Revenue 

Officer; Dorothy Morrison, Beautification Committee and Downtown Redevelopment Authority; 

Larry Cooke, BZA; Al Guarisco, Village Point Foundation; Willie Robison, BZA; Heiko 

Einfeld, Interim Director for Eastern Shore Chamber of Commerce. 

  

Absent: Mayor Dane Haygood; Jay Ross, City Attorney; Vickie Hinman, HR Director. 

 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES: 

May 5, 2014 Council meeting minutes 

There were no corrections to the May 5, 2014 council meeting minutes, and stand approved as 

written. 

 

May 2, 2014 Emergency Special Called Council meeting minutes 

There were no corrections to the April 25, 2014 Emergency Special Called council meeting 

minutes, and stand approved as written. 

 

May 12, 2014 Council Work Session minutes 

Councilwoman Conaway amended the May 12, 2014 Council Work Session minutes to reflect 

the question she asked the Mayor regarding receiving trash e-mails and the solution, and the 

Mayors comments.  There was no objection to the amendment so the May 12, 2014 Council 

Work Session minutes stand approved as amended. 

 

PRESENTATION:  Huntingdon College / Graduating Class of 2014 / Ms. Gale Croft 

Council President Randy Fry presented pins to the graduates as Ms. Croft read the names. 

 

 

 

 

 

June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 1



MAY 19, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e2
 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

      A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Conaway 

The minutes for the April 21
st
 meeting are in the packet.  

 

Treasurers Report 

Treasures report as of March 2014:   Total Unrestricted Funds - $11,657,656 and Total City 

Funds - $17,470,406 

 

Sales & Use Tax Collections as of February 2014:  
$1,205,342.67 was collected for March 2014 

 YTD Variance over Budget - $7,185.51:  + .1% 

 Percent change from last year’s collections:  +4.3%  

 

Lodging Tax Collections 

March 2014 collections were $71,954.97 which is up from March 2013’s collections - 

$64,325.47.  

 YTD Variance over Budget– $766:     .1% 

 Percentage change from last year’s collection:    1.77% 

 

The next month’s Lodging Tax collections will reflect the April 2014 rate increase 4% to 6%. 

 

      B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE - Davis 
The minutes for the May 5

th
 meeting are in the packet.  Plans are to put a plaque with 

information regarding the Algae Systems project in the bay. 

 

      C.   PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

The committee met May 14
th

 and the minutes will be in the next packet. The next meeting is 

June 11
th

 at 4:30 p.m.   

 

      D.   CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Scott 

There is one ordinance on the agenda that the committee has recommended to council for 

approval Ordinance 2014-23 which will be a 1
st
 Read. 

 

      E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

The April 21
st
 Public Works minutes, May 7

th
 Beautification minutes and April 28

th
 

Environmental Advisory Committee minutes are in the packet. 

 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMITTSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

No report. 

 

 

 

 

June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 2



MAY 19, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e3
 

   

      B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The April 23
rd

 minutes are in the packet.  The  next meeting will be May 28
th

 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

      C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

The board will not meet this month due to Memorial Day.  The next meeting will be June 30
th

.  

There were several topics discussed at the work session regarding economic development and 

the strategic plan that the IDB will be considering. 

 

      D.   Library Board – Lake 

The next meeting will be June 12
th

 at 4:00 p.m. at the Library. 

 

      E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The Planning Commission will meet Thursday at 5:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers. 

 

     F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

The board met last Wednesday, and the minutes will be in the next packet.  The board discussed 

moving forward with ball parks, and they created a list of most needed and the least needed, and 

he will get that list to council.  The board did not consider where the fields will go, he just 

wanted to get them current with the children’s needs. 

 

    G.   Utility Board – Fry 

The next meeting will be May 28
th

 at 5:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers. 

 

 

6.    REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

       A.  Mayor’s Report 
No report. 

 

      B.  City Attorney’s Report 

No report. 

 

     C.   Department Head Comments 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – reported that there are only two Brown Bag by the Bay 

concerts left which is on Thursdays from 11:30 a.m. – 1:30 p.m.  Spring football is gearing up, 

and the summer programs will start soon. 

 

Vickie Hinman - HR Director – reported there was a part-time fitness position open. 

 

Richard Johnson – Public Works Director – thanked everybody for their patience in addressing 

smaller projects.  He will be meeting with FEMA and start qualifying projects and will  be 

addressing them as fast as he can.  He mentioned to everyone to let them know of any damage so 

they can get it documented. 

 

 

June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 3



MAY 19, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e4
 

 
Tonja Young – Library Director – reported that the summer reading program will be starting soon, and 

sign up for the program is going on now at the Library 

 

Mike Hinson – Finance Director – mentioned that Council had received the CAFRA report, and is 

accumulating suggestions so if Council has any questions or suggestions to  call him.  

 

     D.  City Clerk Report – Rebecca A. Hayes 

No report. 

 

 

7.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 

Mr. Don Ouellette – 7720 Elizabeth Drive – spoke regarding a cliff in his neighborhood where it is 

eroding, and  it will soon be affecting a neighbor’s house.  He said the city need’s an engineer to sign off 

on projects from developers developing a project to prevent this from happening. 

 

Mr. Willie Williams – 1513 Pollard Road – spoke regarding discrimination practices going on at Daphne 

Utilities and asked council to investigate.  He said he was going to keep coming until council did 

something to remedy the situation at the Utilities. He has contacted a national organization that will be 

coming to the next council meeting regarding this situation. 

 

Al Guarisco – 1205 Randall Avenue – thanked council for the paving of Randall Avenue saying it was 

great and thank you. 

 

Mr. Leroy Hall – 6378 Jacksons Oak Drive – spoke regarding flooding and washing away of property on 

Yancey Branch due to work done on the road at Village Point Park.  He asked council to look into it and 

do something to correct the situation. 

 

 

8.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

         
        RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)   Declaring Certain Property Surplus / 2 2003 Crown Vics . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2014-22 

 

b.)   Enter Into a Membership with the Organization  

       “Keep America Beautiful” and Create an Organizational  

        Structure Task Group: “Keep Daphne Beautiful” (KDB) Team. . . . ./Resolution 2014-23 

 

c.)   Agreement with ALDOT: Project ACOA61155-ATRIP 02-05-35 / 

       Resurfacing Windsor & Ridgewood Drive (1.226 Miles)  

       City of Daphne – Baldwin County . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2014-24 

 

d.)   Authorizing Issuance of Credit Cards: Community 

       Development & Revenue. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2014-25 

 

e.)   Bid Award: Oil & Lubricants / Martin Energy Services . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2014-26 

 

f.)   Bid Award: Park Chemicals / John Deere Landscapes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2014-27 

June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 4



MAY 19, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e5
 

 

 

g.)  Bid Award: Janitorial Supplies / Dade Paper  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2014-28 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolutions 2014-22, 2014-23 2014-24, 2014-

25, 2014-26, 2014-27and 2014-28  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

                                          MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

a.) Declaring Certain Property Surplus / 2 - 2003 Crown Vics . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2014-22 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2014-22.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

                                             MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

b.)   Enter Into a Membership with the Organization “Keep America Beautiful” and Create  

        an Organizational  Structure Task Group: “Keep Daphne Beautiful” (KDB) Team. . . .     

        /Resolution 2014-23 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt of Resolution 2014-23.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

Mr. Boucher, City Attorney, presented Mayor Haygood’s stance on this resolutions as follows: 

 

1.  The resolution as written does not encompass all the ideas that need to be implemented 

 

2.   It is a new committee and instead, perhaps, an old committee could take the duties like the               

      Beautification Committee 

 

3.  The manner of the membership in the committee if that were to go forward, and there     

      were no boundaries for the committee like the terms how would the council remove   

      anybody if there was a problem, and there are no staggered terms 

 

4.  Utilization of funds by a sub-committee which they are not authorized to do 

 

Council discussed the resolution. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Conaway  Aye    LeJeune  Nay 

Rudicell  Nay    Davis   Nay 

Lake   Aye    Fry   Aye 

Scott   Aye 

 

AYE    Conaway, Lake, Scott, Fry    NAY    LeJeune, Davis 

 

                                                               MOTION CARRIED 

 

June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 5



MAY 19, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e6
 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Resolutions 2014-24, 2014-25, 2014-26, 2014-27 

and 2014-28.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

                                           MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 ORDINANCES: 

 
       2

ND
 READ     

a.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Recreation HVAC. . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-20 

 

b.)   Cancellation of: Website Integration for Animal Shelter &  

        Library Donation and Close the Credit Card Donation  

        Bank Account. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-21 

 

c.)    Appropriation of Funds:  Hazard Weather / Emergency 

        Duty Pay during the January 2014 Ice Storm . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-22 
 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to waive the reading of Ordinances 2014-20, 2014-

21 and 2014-22.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

                                                      MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Ordinances 2014-20, 2014-21 and 2014-22.  Seconded by 

Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

Councilman Rudicell requested that they consider 2014-22 separately. 

 

Councilman Lake withdrew ordinance 2014-22 from the motion and Councilwoman Conaway was 

in agreement. 

 

                                                          MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2014-22.  Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

                                                   MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

 

 

June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 6



MAY 19, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e7
 

 

 

         1
ST

 READ 

a.)    Establishing a Policy for Events Held Within the City of  

         Daphne. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-23 

 

b.)  Appropriating Funds: Survey, Design and Letting – City  

     Wide Infrastructure Projects . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-24 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to suspend the rules to consider Ordinance 2014-24.  

Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Conaway  Aye    LeJeune  Aye 

Rudicell  Aye    Davis   Aye  

Lake  Aye    Fry   Aye 

Scott  Aye 

 

                                                 MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to waive the reading of Ordinance 2014-24.  

Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

                                                  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTIONBY Councilman LeJeune to adopt Ordinance 2014-24.  Seconded by 

Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

                                                  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

                                                    

 

ORDINANCES 2014-23 WAS MADE 1
ST

 READ 

 

 
9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Councilwoman Conaway  thanked Mr. Johnson and his staff for extending the invitation to Public Works 

Day, because she always enjoys serving the children on that day, and she looks forward to next year. 

 

Councilman Rudicell mentioned that Planning Commission member Dan Gibson passed away. 

 

Councilman Lake complimented Richard Johnson, Ashley Campbell and the Public Safety staff 

for the handling of the rain event.   

 

 

June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 7



MAY 19, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e8
 

 

Councilman Scott thanked Dorothy Morrison with the Beautification Committee for all the hard 

work she does for the city. 

 

Councilman LeJeune wished everyone a good holiday and urged them to be safe. 

 

Councilman Davis attended the Daphne Middle School graduation and he was pleased to see the 

different organizations represented and to see who was in which organization.  There were 

hundreds of children and each student stood up once for some outside activity in the community.  

He thinks the council should do more in recognizing these students and organizations. There is a 

lot of good happening with the strategic plan and comprehensive plan that Mrs. Jones will be 

bringing up a little later.  The marketing and promoting of the city is being done by the Industrial 

Development Board and the Downtown Redevelopment Board.  There are five topics that they 

should address:  1.)  traffic and routing  2.)  recreation  3.) economic development  4.)  schools  

5.)  Annexation.  All five of these topics deserves councils attention and focus, and the 

beautification of the city is paramount to all those.  He appreciates the Beautification Committee, 

and if he said anything that might have suggested that he didn’t he is sorry.  He is trying to help 

them get more resources and more structure not less. 

 

Council President Fry also commended Richard Johnson and Ashley Campbell for their work 

after the storm.  He said the city received excellent press after their emergency called meeting 

setting the model for other cities.  Getting in the front was a great benefit.  He asked Richard and 

Ashley to get with the gentleman regarding the Village Point Park road drainage problem, and he 

would like some more information on the situation.  He mentioned great marketing for the city 

was the last spring concert at Bayfront Park with Mobile Big Band playing.  He said it was the 

biggest crowd he has ever seen at the concerts. He will meet with Mr. Williams after the meeting 

about his concern. 
 

10.   ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING 

ADJOURNED AT 7:45 P.M. 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                  Certification of Presiding Officer 

                               

                                        

__________________________________   _____________________________   

Rebecca A. Hayes     Randy Fry,     

City Clerk      Council President 

June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 8



MAY 12, 2014 
CITY COUNCILWORK SESSION                                 Amended at the May 19, 2014 

1705 MAIN STREET                                                         Council Meeting 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

 

P
ag

e1
 

   
1. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT / STRATEGIC PLAN / COUNCILMAN DAVIS 

Councilman Davis reported on the trip that he took with the Chamber of Commerce to Memphis and 

Germantown, Tennessee.  Looking at these cities and how they do things showed him that they need to 

resurrect the Strategic Plan and look at it in a different perspective.  He worked with the Mayor and Jane 

on a Request for Proposal (RFP) for a consultant.  He handed out the proposed RFP which included a list 

of facilitators.  He also handed out a map highlighting areas for potential growth.  He outlined ways the 

IDB could help with scouting out companies to bring into the city. 

 

2. STREAMING OF COUNCIL MEETING RECORDING / MAYOR HAYGOOD 

Mayor Haygood said he would like to in the future stream the audio recording of the council meetings on 

the website.  He said that you have live audio, archive audio, live video and archive video.  He would 

like to explore providing that for citizens who cannot make it to the council meetings.  He said it would 

not take a lot of money to open it up.   

 

 

3. ANYTHING ELSE DEEMED NECESSARY  

Councilwoman Conaway asked the Mayor why he changed from g-mail to exchange, because she is, 

along with other council members, having a lot of trash that she has to go through her phone and delete 

all that information.  

 

Mayor Haygood said the reason for the change was both cost  and one of efficiency stand point.  When 

you use the exchange to send an internal e-mail it goes straight to the server local, and if he sends Becky  

an e-mail with a 10 mb attachment it is there like that!  A lot of bandwidth was being consumed using an 

externally hosted e-mail solution.  So they were on g-mail and he sends Becky an e-mail with a 10 mb 

attachment it has to upload that and it takes 10 mb to upload then when Becky goes an checks her e-mail 

it’s got to pull it back down so it is consuming 20 mb of bandwidth for something that where an 

exchange server they are able to use zero mb of external bandwidth.  There are also a lot of other 

features that are more enhanced like with calendars and some other things that they can do.  There is a 

known problem, and Councilman Davis has been the biggest critic.  He does not know where they stand, 

but he will check on it tomorrow.  Rick Whitehead has investigated and found a solution, but he does not 

know the status, it is a spam service, and he will check with Rick and report back Monday at the council 

meeting. 

 

8.  ADJOURN 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,         Certification of Presiding Officer:  

                                                     

                               

___________________________         _____________________________                                                                                  

Rebecca A. Hayes          Randy Fry 

City Clerk                                                            Council President Pro tem                                           

                                               

June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 9



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

STANDING COMMITTEES 

June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 10



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 11



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 12



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 13



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 14



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

SPECIAL BOARDS 

June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 15



 
 

CITY OF DAPHNE  

BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENT AGENDA 

MAY 1, 2014 - 6:00 P.M.  

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER – 6:03 P.M. 

 

2. CALL OF ROLL – Present W. Robison, L. Cooke, F. Lamb, B. Mayhand, P. 
Durant  

 

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  

  

 April 3, 2014 - Approved   

  

4. OLD BUSINESS 

 

5. NEW BUSINESS 

 

Appeal #2014-05 Sportsman’s Storage, LLC - Approved 

 
A request for a Variance to the Daphne Land Use and 

Development Ordinance has been filed with the City of 

Daphne Board of Zoning Adjustment. The request, if granted, 

proposes to change the west side setback to five-feet, in 

lieu of the required twenty five-feet. The property is Lot 

2, Sportsman Marine Subdivision, which is zoned B-2, 

General Business. 

 

Appeal #2014-06 Sportsman’s Storage, LLC - Approved 

 
A request for a Variance to the Daphne Land Use and 

Development Ordinance has been filed with the City of 

Daphne Board of Zoning Adjustment. The request, if granted, 

proposes to change the north rear setback to twenty-feet, 

in lieu of the required twenty five-feet. The property is 

Lot 2, Sportsman Marine Subdivision, which is zoned B-2, 

General Business. 

 

6. ADJOURNMENT – 6:47 p.m. 

June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 16



DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

May 28, 2014 
 
 

COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 

Members Present: Dorothy Morrison, Debbie Strahley, Kennard Balme, Casey Zito, 
Dayna Oldham 
 
Absent: Council Member Tommie Conaway, Doug Bailey, Patricia Vanderpool  
 
Also Present: Sarah Toulson (Recording Secretary); Christine Ciancetta, Deputy 
Finance Director; Annie Root, Daphne Art Center; Peter Root, Daphne Art Center 
 
Casey Zito called the meeting to order at 5:40 pm 
 
1. Approval of Minutes:  
 
Amend minutes to approve minutes from the March 26, 2014 meeting. 
 

Motion:  to approve the minutes from the April 23, 2014 meeting as amended.  
Moved by Dorothy Morrison, second by Kennard Balme.   
 

Carried unanimously. 

 
2. Treasurer’s report 
 
Chairwoman Zito reported that the DRA currently had $112,893.58 on hand, after 
all approved expenses cleared. 
  

Motion: to approve the Treasurer’s Report as given.  Moved by Dorothy Morrison, 
second by Debbie Strahley. 
  

Carried unanimously. 

 
3. Beautification Report 
 
Dorothy Morrison reported that the planter boxes along Main Street had been 
replanted with red, white, and blue plants by Public Works, and that the DRA should 
be receiving a bill for the labor shortly.   
 
Ms. Morrison also reported the following beautification activities: 

 Keep Daphne Beautiful was considered at the last Council Meeting and 
approved, and is now is sitting on the Mayor’s desk for his signature. 

June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 17



 
 The City has approximately 400 American flags out along the major 

corridors of Daphne in celebration of Memorial Day and other patriotic 
holidays. 

 
 Patriots Point is completed; flowers are growing and looking good. 

 
 The bridge at Gator Alley was knocked out during the recent rain event, and 

will take approximately six months to repair.  Christine Ciancetta reported 
that a temporary repair measure including stabilization will be put in place 
in a few months.  We are awaiting an engineering report for hard figures as 
to cost of repairs. 

 
 Birdhouse brochure for the Purple Martin houses around the City is nearing 

completion. 
 
Ms. Morrison concluded by noting that the Beautification committee was looking for 
suggestions regarding Keep Daphne Beautiful, for publicity, ideas for projects, 
especially “clean-up” projects. 
 
4. Economic Development Training Course 
 
Chairman Zito spoke to the information contained in the packet regarding a training 
opportunity with the Economic Development Alliance of Alabama.  She invited 
anyone that was interested in attending to let the body know so arrangements could 
be made. 
 
Chairman Zito also mentioned the Eastern Shore Metropolitan Planning 
Organization, and the possibility of meeting with them and other stakeholders to 
discuss area growth and how it could effect the downtown area.  Potential 
stakeholders mentioned included the Industrial Development Board, ESMPO, and 
Parks and Recreation.   
 
5. DRA Website/Logo 
 
Chairman Zito briefly mentioned the need to divide the research and work needed 
to bring different parts of the site up and running, including the area history, 
merchant’s corner, and calendar.  
 
6. Daphne Farm and Art Show: Annie Root, Daphne Art Center 
 
Ms. Annie Root of the Daphne Art Center spoke regarding the Olde Towne Daphne 
Farm and Art show.  She described the event which will take place on June 28th from 
10 am to 4 pm to bring attention to the downtown area via sales from local art 
shows, fresh produce available from local farmers, a possible wine tasting with 

June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 18



Southern Napa, as well as children’s and other activities.  Event will encompass City 
Hall property and Centennial Park.  Farmers will be located perhaps near the Art 
Center, depending on how many artists attend.   
 
7. Mini-Grant Proposal: Insurance for Farm and Art Show 
 
The committee discussed the mini-grant proposal in depth, including the merits of 
different proposed methods of gaining publicity for the event. 

 
Kennard Balme went through the proposed budget, discussing each item and 
explaining the proposed way forward. 
 

Motion:  to approve mini-grant for an amount not to exceed $2,500.00 to the 
Daphne Art Center for publicity costs associated with the Olde Towne Farm and Art 
Show.  Moved by Dorothy Morrison, second by Dayna Oldham.   
 

Carried unanimously. 

 

Motion:  to approve mini-grant for an amount of $100.00 to the Daphne Art Center 
for insurance costs associated with the Olde Towne Farm and Art Show.  Moved by 
Dayna Oldham, second by Dorothy Morrison.   
 

Carried unanimously. 

 
8. Other business discussed 
 
Chairman’s meeting with Mayor Haygood 
 
Chairman Zito reported that her meeting with Mayor Haygood was very productive.  
The Mayor discussed his vision for downtown, including improvements to building 
facades and other aesthetic elements downtown. Ms. Zito expressed to the Mayor 
her desire to look for buildings, draw in businesses, and increase the aesthetic 
appeal. 
 
Next meeting: June 25th at 5:30 pm. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:08 pm. 
 
 

June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 19



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 20



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 21



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 22



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 23



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 24



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 25



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 26



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 27



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 28



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 29



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 30



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 31



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 32



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 33



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

OFFICERS 

June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 34



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 35



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 36



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 37



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 38



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 39



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 40



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 41



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 42



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 43



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 44



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 45



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 46



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 47



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 48



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 49



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 50



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 51



June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 52



 

 

 

RESOLUTIONS 

& 

ORDINANCES 

June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 53



CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-23 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A POLICY  

FOR EVENTS HELD WITHIN THE CITY OF DAPHNE 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne has determined that it is in the 

public interest to provide access to city-maintained roads for the purpose of holding parades, 

races, and other special events; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, to ensure that City resources are properly utilized, and to ensure the safety 

of participants for these events, the Council sees a need to provide for a process or procedure for 

the administration of parades, races, and other events requiring City assistance; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, Ordinance 1968-7 is repealed in its entirety and replaced with the 

following. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA: 

 

 SECTION 1.  DEFINITIONS 

 

 Unless the context clearly indicates a different meaning, the words, terms and phrases 

used in this Ordinance shall have the following respective meanings: 

 

 "City" shall mean the City of Daphne in the State of Alabama. 

 

 “Complete application form” shall mean a properly filled out application and all 

 supporting documents.  

 

 "Person" shall mean any person, entity, firm, corporation, partnership, association, 

 administrator, trustee, or other fiduciary. 

 

 “Race” shall mean any long distance running event, which may but not necessarily be 

 timed, that requires closure of City roads for the safety of participants. 

 

 “Band” shall mean a band, DJ, radio, CD player or any means to produce music outside. 

 

 “Special Event” is any event, including but not limited to parades, races, use of bands, 

 pastry sales or picketing, that significantly impacts the use of streets, roads, or other 

 public place in the City. 

 

June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 54



ORDINANCE 2014-23               POLICY FOR EVNTS HELD IN CITY OF DAPHNE              Page 2 of 6 
 

 “Parade” is any formal public procession, march, ceremony, show, exhibition, pageant, or 

 a group of persons or vehicles containing persons moving forward in an orderly, 

 ceremonious, or solemn procession, or any similar display in or upon any street, park or 

 other public place in the City.    

 

 “Permit” is a permit as required by this Ordinance. 

 

 “Person” is any person, firm, partnership, association, corporation, company, or 

 organization of any kind. 

 

 “City Council” is the City Council of the City of Daphne. 

 

 “Street” is any part of a public right-of-way in the City, including, but not limited to, 

 that part known as a sidewalk. 

 

 SECTION 2.   APPLICATION PROCESS 

 

 1. The City will create an approved Special Events Application Form.  The current 

version of the Special Events Application Form is herein attached as an example but is not the 

definitive form.  The form may be altered periodically by the City Council or its designee.  This 

Form will be the only manner in which a request for City approval of all special events to include 

parades, races, use of bands, doughnut sales or picketing will be entertained. 

 

 2. If a permit is issued, said permit will exempt the Special Event from Ordinance 

2012-35, popularly known as the Noise Ordinance. 

 

 3. Application forms will be available upon request from the City Clerk’s office or 

online at www.daphneal.com. 

 

 4. No person shall engage in, participate in, aid, form or start any Special Event, 

unless a permit shall have been obtained from the City Council.   

 

 5. This Ordinance shall not apply to: 

 

a. Funeral processions; 

b. Students going to and from school classes or participating in 

 educational activities, provided such conduct is under the 

 immediate direction and supervision of the proper school 

 authorities; 

c. Any governmental agency acting within the scope of its functions. 

 

 SECTION 3.  APPLICATION SUBMISSION DEADLINES 

 

 1. Applicants may not submit a permit for an event earlier than one (1) year before 

its scheduled date of occurrence. 

 

June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 55

http://www.daphneal.com/


ORDINANCE 2014-23               POLICY FOR EVNTS HELD IN CITY OF DAPHNE              Page 3 of 6 
 

 2. Persons seeking to have their permit approved in a timely manner should 

complete their application form and submit it to the City Clerk’s Office no later than as described 

below: 

 

a. For events requesting closure of City roads, or with over 200 expected 

participants, a completed application form must be submitted no later than 

sixty (60) days before the event date. 

 

b. For any other events requesting use of City grounds, a completed application 

form must be submitted no later than thirty (30) days before the event date. 

 

c.  All other permits must be submitted no later than fifteen (15) days before the 

event date. 

 

 3. The City Council, where good cause is shown therefore, shall have the authority 

to consider any application hereunder which is filed less than ten (10) days before the date such 

parade is proposed to be conducted. 

 

 SECTION 4.  PERMIT APPROVAL PROCESS 

 

The City Council shall issue a permit as provided for hereunder when, from a consideration of 

the application and from such other information as may otherwise be obtained, they find that: 

  

1. All Special Event permits have been approved by the Fire Chief and Police Chief, 

or their designees. 

 

2. All Special Event permits related to band, parade and race permits, or which may 

impede the flow of traffic, have been approved by the Public Works Director or his 

designee. 

 

3. All Special Event permits to include activity at or around any City park or other 

recreational facility has been approved by the Parks and Recreation Director or his 

designee. 

 

4. The conduct of the Special Event will not require the diversion of so great a 

number of police officers of the City to properly police the line of movement and the 

areas contiguous thereto as to prevent reasonable police protection of the City. 

 

5. The conduct of such Special Event will not require the diversion of so great a 

number of ambulances as to prevent reasonable ambulance services to portions of the 

City. 

 

6. The concentration of persons, animals and vehicles at assembly points of the 

Special Event will not unduly interfere with proper fire and police protection of, or 

ambulance service to, areas contiguous to such assembly areas. 

 

June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 56



ORDINANCE 2014-23               POLICY FOR EVNTS HELD IN CITY OF DAPHNE              Page 4 of 6 
 

7. The conduct of such Special Event will not interfere with the movement of 

firefighting equipment in route to a fire. 

 

8. The conduct of the Special Event is not reasonably likely to cause injury to 

persons or property, to provoke disorderly conduct or create a disturbance. 

 

9. If the Special Event is a parade, it is scheduled to move from its point of origin to 

its point of termination expeditiously and without unreasonable delays en route. The 

parade will not substantially interrupt the safe and orderly movement of other traffic 

continuous to its route 

 

10. The Special Event is not to be held for the sole purpose of advertising any 

product, goods or event, and is not designed to be held purely for private profit. 

 

 SECTION 5.  DESIGNATED ROUTES AND TIMES FOR SPECIAL  

    EVENTS 

 

1. In addition to completing an application form as noted in Section three above, 

applicants requesting the closure of City roads for events including parades and races will 

be required to specify a route for their event.  Applicants are limited to selecting among 

the provided pre-approved, certified routes. 

 

2. Races may only be held on Saturdays, with set up beginning no earlier than 7 a.m. 

and ending no later than noon.  Roads must be cleared by 10 a.m. 

 

3. Mardi Gras events must be held in accordance with the provisions of [Ordinances 

2003-17 and 2005-03]. 

 

4. The number of races requiring road closures within one calendar year shall be 

limited to eight (8).  This number shall not include events associated with national 

holidays, weekday runs or walks associated with the normal operation of public and 

private schools, Mardi Gras parades and any parade organized by a school within the 

limits of the City of Daphne. 

 

5. The City Council shall act upon the application for a Special Event permit within 

a reasonable time but no later than thirty (30) days after the filing thereof.  If the City 

Council fails to act within those thirty days, the application is deemed denied.  If the City 

Council disapproves the application, the City Clerk shall mail to the applicant within six 

(6) days after the date upon which the Council acted, a notice of the City Council action, 

stating the reasons for denial of the permit. 

 

SECTION 6.  CITY LISTED AS EVENT SPONSOR 

 

1. All events requesting road closures or use of City grounds shall be required to list 

the City as an event sponsor on any advertising or merchandise (including but not limited 

June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 57



ORDINANCE 2014-23               POLICY FOR EVNTS HELD IN CITY OF DAPHNE              Page 5 of 6 
 

to t-shirts, flyers, signs, and newspaper advertisements).  Listing may include use of the 

City logo if deemed necessary by the City Council or its designee.` 

 

 2. Permittee shall comply with all permit directions and conditions and will follow 

 all applicable laws and ordinances. 

 

 4. The parade chairman or other person leading such activity shall carry the Special 

Event permit upon his person during the conduct of the Special Event. 

 

 SECTION 7.  PUBLIC CONDUCT DURING SPECIAL EVENT 

 

 1. No person shall unreasonably hamper, obstruct, impede, or interfere with any 

Special Event or Special Event assembly or with any person, vehicle or animal participant or 

used in a Special Event.  The permit language may put reasonable restrictions as to the conduct 

of the Special Event including but not limited to location and timing. 

 

 2. No driver of a vehicle, street car or trackless trolley shall drive between the 

vehicles or persons comprising a parade when such vehicles or persons are in motion and are 

conspicuously designated as a parade. 

 

 3. The City Council shall have the authority to prohibit or restrict the parking of 

vehicles along the highway or part thereof constituting a part of the Special Event.  The City 

Council may cause the Police Chief to post signs to such affect and it shall be unlawful for any 

person to park or leave unattended any vehicle in violation thereof. 

 

 SECTION 8.  PENALTIES 

 

 Any person or persons or association of persons, violating any of the provisions of the 

foregoing sections, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and on conviction shall be punished by a 

fine of not less than $25 nor more than the maximum allowed by law and may also be sentenced 

to imprisonment or hard labor for not exceeding six (6) months. 

 

 SECTION 9.  RIGHT TO CANCEL/REVOCATION OF PERMIT 

 

 1. The City of Daphne reserves the right to cancel or postpone events for any reason 

deemed necessary by the City Council. 

 

  

 2. The City Council shall have the authority to revoke a parade permit issued 

hereunder upon failure of the applicants or participants to comply with the standards for issuance 

and the provisions herein set forth and such authority may be delegated to the officer or such 

other person designated by the City Council to supervise said parade. 

  

  

 

 

June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 58



ORDINANCE 2014-23               POLICY FOR EVNTS HELD IN CITY OF DAPHNE              Page 6 of 6 
 

 

SECTION 10. FEES 

 

 1. There are no fees for special events but donations to the City to offset costs may 

be accepted. 

 2. Refunds for donation associated with an Special Event permit are authorized only 

if written notice of cancellation is given to the City Clerk’s office no later than 3:00 p.m. on the 

day before the event is scheduled to occur. 

 

 SECTION 11.  APPROVED PERMITS 

 

 1. Within six (6) business days of approval, the applicant will be notified and a copy 

of the permit shall be supplied to them.  All approved permits shall additionally be submitted to 

any appropriate City departments for adequate notification. 

 

SECTION 12.  SEVERABILITY 

 

  If any section, subsection, clause, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be held 

to be invalid or unconstitutional in a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding or holding 

shall not affect any other section, subsection, clause, provision or part of this Ordinance which is 

in itself and of itself valid and constitutional. 

 

 SECTION 13. EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its 

approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

   

  

 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE ____ DAY OF _______________, 2014. 
 

 

 CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

 

 _________________________________                                             

        DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________                                                                     

REBECCA A. HAYES, CITY CLERK 

June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 59



ORDINANCE 2014-25 
 

Project: ACOA61155-ATRP(001) ATRIP 02-05-35 - Resurfacing Windsor & 
Ridgewood Drive - 1.25 Miles (Lake Forest Phase IV) 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2013-50approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2014 
Budget on September 23, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has entered into an agreement with ALDOT for an ATRIP grant for 
the resurfacing of Windsor & Ridgewood Drives from North Main Street to Bayview 
Drive with an 80/20 cost share ratio. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of $369,086.00 from the General Fund are 
appropriated to be transferred to Capital Reserve and made a part of the Fiscal 
Year 2014 budget for the City’s 20% match for the project herein described. 
 

Estimated Activities Total Cost 
80% 

Reimbursement 
20% Cost to the 

City 
Construction $1,604,722.00 $1,283,777.00 $320,944.00 
Construction Engineering & 
Inspection & Material Testing 

$240,708.00 $192,567.00 $48,142.00 

Totals: $1,845,430.00 $1,476,344.00 $369,086.00 

 
FURTHERMORE, the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute any and all documents 
required in order for the City of Daphne to participate in such project. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, this ____ day of ________________, 2014. 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

June 2, 2014 Council Meeting 60


	ROLL CALL
	AGENDA
	Council Minutes
	Council Work Session Mintues - Amended
	Report of Standing Committees
	Public Safety Minutes
	Report of Special Boards
	BZA REport
	DRA Minutes
	Planning Commission Minutes April 24 2014
	Utility Board Minutes
	LON JOHNSTON'S RESIGNATION LETTER
	Report of Officers
	Verizon Lease
	Backup to Verizon Lease
	Resolutions & Ordinances
	2014-23 - ORD - Policy for  Events
	2014-25 -2014 ATRIP



